
Date Published:26 April 2018     

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee

Monday 21 May 2018 at 1.00 pm

Members' Room - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies for absence.

Laura Powick

2  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6)

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 14 March 2018.

Laura Powick

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To receive any pecuniary or personal interests by members.

Laura Powick

4  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

The Committee to consider excluding the press and public from the 
meeting for the following agenda items in accordance with Section 
100 A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, because it is likely that 
if members of the public were present there would be disclosure to 
them of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12 A to the Act and the public interest in withholding the 
information outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information to the public.

Laura Powick

5  UPDATE ON STRATEGIC PLANNING IN GLOUCESTERSHIRE (Pages 
7 - 12)

To receive further proposals in respect of strategic planning 
coordination in Gloucestershire.  

Mike Dawson



    

Membership –  Cllr Lynden Stowe (Chair) Cllr Tim Gwilliam, Cllr Dave Waters, Cllr Paul James, 
Cllr Steve Jordan and Cllr Christopher Hancock
Dev Chakraborty

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer, 
Jane Burns 01452 328472 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) 
prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Laura Powick, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324205/fax: 425850/e-mail: laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c)

(d) 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
Members are required to sign the attendance list.

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (tel 01452 425230) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk


- 1 -

GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT 
COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the meeting of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee 
held on Wednesday 14 March 2018 commencing at 10.00 am at the Cabinet Suite - 
Shire Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT
MEMBERSHIP:

Cllr Dave Waters
Cllr Paul James
Cllr Steve Jordan
Cllr Christopher Hancock

Cllr Lynden Stowe (Chair)
Cllr Doina Cornell
Dev Chakraborty

Substitutes:

Apologies: Cllr Tim Gwilliam and Mally Findlater

115. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Cllr Tim Gwilliam and Mally Findlater, GFirst LEP.

116. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 29 November 2017 were approved by the 
Committee and signed by the Chair.

117. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Cllr Steve Jordan declared a personal interest, as a GFirst LEP Director 
representing Leadership Gloucestershire on the GFirst LEP Board.

118. GLOUCESTERSHIRE'S GROWTH STORY 

Highways England Presentation

The Committee received a presentation from Andrew Page-Dove, Regional 
Director, Highways England, on the investment priorities and challenges facing 
Highways England in the South West. 

In particular, the Committee was informed about the potential impacts following the 
expected removal of tolls on the Severn River Crossing, progress with the A417 
‘Missing Link’ Scheme, and the Initial Network Report, which was published in 
December 2017. The Committee also noted the challenges facing Highways 
England in the South West, including the scheduling of planned works on the M5 
Corridor, and the impact of planned and un-planned events on the strategic road 
network.

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

In response to a query, the Committee was informed that Highways England was 
committed to supporting the development of the Cheltenham Cyber Park and 
welcomed the opportunity for further conversations on the scheme. 

In response to a further query relating to the Stroud District Local Plan, it was 
explained that Highways England could recommend conditions on planning 
applications, however was not able to impose direction. Andrew Page-Dove 
welcomed the opportunity for further engagement with Stroud District Council on its 
Local Plan. 

There were also queries from the Committee regarding the economic impact of 
traffic growth, network management boundaries, the alignment of network priorities 
with housing development priorities, and the potential impact of developments to 
junctions along the M5. Additionally, Andrew Page-Dove stated that he was open-
minded, in response to a query relating to the development of an additional River 
Severn crossing. 

The Committee considered potential developments to the M5 Corridor, such as 
improvements at Junction 9, the development of Junction 10, and the creation of a 
new junction between Junctions 13 and 14. The Committee was advised, following 
the discussion, to agree and focus on the key priorities for development within the 
County.  

The Committee invited Highways England to work with local authorities and 
partners within Gloucestershire more regularly at a strategic level moving forward. 
Andrew Page-Dove welcomed the opportunity for further collaboration and 
accepted the invitation.

The Committee thanked Andrew Page-Dove for attending the Committee and for 
delivering an informative presentation. 

Connections Study

Ben Watts, Principal Planning Officer: Strategic Planning, Gloucestershire County 
Council (GCC), provided the Committee with an update on the GCC commissioned 
Connections Study. 

The Committee was informed of the focus, outcomes, and conclusions of Stage 1 of 
the Gloucestershire Connects Project, and noted that the outputs would inform 
GCC’s Local Transport Plan review process. It was also noted that Stage 2 of the 
project would look at highway links within the County and provide a financial value 
to each link. It was expected that the Stage 2 analysis would be completed by the 
end of April 2018. 

In response to a query, it was explained that the project relied on census data and 
a narrative based on the views of stakeholders, as well as a policy and literature 
review. It was also clarified that the focus of the project was on external connectivity 
rather than internal connectivity. 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

In response to a further query relating to rail connectivity, the Committee was 
informed about GCC’s Rail Policy and Rail Study. The documents could be 
accessed at the following link: 
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/transport/gloucestershires-local-transport-plan-
2015-2031/rail/ 

A417 ‘Missing Link’ Consultation

Amanda Lawson-Smith, Transport Planning Team Manager, GCC, gave a 
presentation to the Committee on the A417 ‘Missing Link’ Consultation, which was 
being undertaken by Highways England between 15 February and 29 March 2018. 

The Committee was advised that, following a process of sifting and assessment, 
Highways England were presenting Option 12 and Option 30 as their proposed 
route options for the A417 ‘Missing Link’, and that Highways England had 
recommended Option 30 as the preferred route.

Following a discussion on the process to date, the costing of the scheme, and other 
infrastructure priorities for the future, the Committee voted in support of the options 
presented by Highways England, with a preference for Option 30.

Post-Brexit Considerations 

The Committee received a position paper advising on post-Brexit considerations for 
Gloucestershire. 

It was requested that details of a recent study by the University of Birmingham on 
the impact of Brexit on the UK be circulated with Committee members. 

The Committee discussed the report and noted that a more comprehensive review 
of the impact of Brexit on Gloucestershire would need to be completed in the future 
when further information was available. 

Gloucestershire Strategic Plans 

Mike Dawson, Chief Executive, Tewkesbury Borough Council, updated the 
Committee on the current status of Local Plans across Gloucestershire. 

It was clarified that the Chesterton site, as identified in the Cotswold Local Plan, 
had not been granted permission, but there was a resolution to permit.

It was proposed that the Committee be updated on key delivery projects for growth 
over the next few Committee meetings. It was also suggested that the Committee 
receive an update on S106 and CIL funds at a future meeting.

Page 3

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/transport/gloucestershires-local-transport-plan-2015-2031/rail/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/transport/gloucestershires-local-transport-plan-2015-2031/rail/


Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

119. GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

The Committee received an update on the activities of the Gloucestershire 
Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee (GEGSC) from Cllr Kevin Cromwell, Vice 
Chair, GEGSC. 

Cllr Cromwell informed the Committee that two GEGSC meetings had now been 
held at district councils, with another meeting to be held at Cheltenham Borough 
Council in October 2018. 

It was also noted that  GEGSC would receive a presentation from Dr Matthew 
Andrews regarding Vision 2050 at its meeting in September 2018. 

120. GFIRST LEP UPDATE 

Dev Chakraborty, Deputy Chief Executive, GFirst LEP, provided the Committee 
with an update on the delivery of the Growth Programme in the County, including 
an update on ESIF, the Growth Deal Fund reallocation process, and preparation of 
a Local Industrial Strategy for Gloucestershire. 

Attention was drawn to the three spreadsheets attached to the report, which 
detailed a list of all Growth Deal funded projects with a focus on their current status, 
a list of all Growth Deal funded projects highlighting forecasted outputs from each 
project, and a visual representation of summary data including progress against 
annual forecasts. 

The Committee was updated on the rollout of the Growth Hub network, and the 
reallocation of Growth Deal funding. It was noted that a ‘Dragon’s Den’ event took 
place on 4 January 2018, where 9 of the 12 projects received against the re-
allocation of funds available gave a presentation on deliverability, economic impact, 
and the realism/achievability of outputs. The overall level of funding available 
increased to over £9.5million, therefore 4 of the 9 projects were offered indicative 
funding. The projects included Gloucester Railway Station Improvements, 
Gloucestershire Airport – Anson Park Development, Hartpury College ‘Tech to 
Plate’ Agri-Tech Centre, and Merrywalks Centre Re-development in Stroud. 

In response to a query, it was highlighted that the Hartpury College ‘Tech to Plate’ 
Agri-Tech Centre was also seeking national funding from Innovate UK, and that the 
project highlighted the importance of agriculture in the County. 

The Committee was informed that 11 LEPs had been allocated to produce Local 
Industrial Strategies, however Gloucestershire was not included in this. GFirst LEP, 
in conjunction with GCC, would produce a draft summary of ‘asks’ to the 
Government by Summer 2018 to ensure Gloucestershire was in a strong position to 
start early conversations with Government departments. 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

In response to a query, it was clarified that progress with the Inward Investment Bid 
was on track.  

121. BUSINESS RATE POOL 

David Hagg, Chief Executive, Stroud District Council, updated the Committee on 
the Business Rate Pool and expenditure proposals for the Strategic Economic 
Development Fund. 

It was noted that a risk remains to the level of retained business rates income from 
outstanding appeals, and that NHS Foundation Trusts were continuing to look to be 
classified as charitable bodies and therefore qualify for mandatory charitable 
business rates relief of 80% of their business rates. 

Members were also reminded that Gloucestershire was successful in its application 
to be a 100% Business Rates Pilot for 2018/19. The Committee noted the 
forecasted increased level of benefit from the Pilot, in addition to the advice from 
Chief Financial Officers that resource allocation decisions on any Pilot benefit be 
made following the 2018/19 outturn position in April 2019, once there was clarity on 
both the amount of business rates retained and the distribution. The Committee 
was advised that the memorandum of understanding with Government would be 
circulated to the district and county councils once signed. 

122. GOVERNMENT/HCA HOUSING INFRASTRUCTURE FUND 

Members of the Committee provided updates on the outcome of recent 
Government/ HCA Housing Infrastructure Fund bids submitted from 
Gloucestershire. 

123. FORWARD PLAN - FUTURE WORK PROGRAMME 

The Committee considered the proposed areas of focus and discussion topics for 
future meetings.

The Chair explained to the Committee that a briefing note had been circulated 
amongst Committee members on the proposal for Cotswold AONB National Park 
status. He requested that GEGSC consider the potential benefits and economic 
impacts of a change to National Park status for the Cotswolds, and report back to 
the Committee at its meeting on 21 November 2018.

It was requested that the Committee receive an update on Vision 2050 at its 
meeting in September 2018.

The Committee was also updated on progress with the appointment to the Strategic 
Planning Coordinator post. 

124. FUTURE MEETING DATES 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

The Committee noted the meeting dates for the remainder of 2018. 

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 12.45 pm

Page 6



Document is Restricted

Page 7

Agenda Item 5
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 11

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Update on Strategic Planning in Gloucestershire
	Appendix 1 Contract Specification


